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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

The Directors present their strategic report together with the audited financial statements for the 49 week period ended 1 February
2020.

We are Footasylum

Footasylum is a proven creative, brave and agile omni channel retailer. Creativity connects our bricks, clicks and kicks; through our
stores, website and own brands we’re story tellers, intent on pushing boundaries. From the moment we opened our first store in 2006,
we became a part of our consumers’ community: urban style leaders who drive new trends and do things our way. Endorsed by this
community of tribes we’re young and agile — never straight-laced. The streets’ local retailer, we defy ordinary.

Footasylum is the Company’s core retail brand, offering a broad range of footwear, apparel and accessories to our core audience of 16
to 24-year-old urban style leaders. This demographic tends to prioritise discretionary spend on aesthetics and image, particularly
clothing and footwear. They are also more willing to embrace new trends and are prominent users of digital sales channels.

We take a digital-first approach in our marketing, working in partnership with established and up-and-com‘in"g players in industries
aligned with our core audience to create online content that inspires, engages and entertains our consumers. By partnering with social
influencers we become part of their online social lives, inspiring loyaity and raising Footasylum’s profile among our target audience.
This runs through the style and functionality of our whole digital platform.

Our retail stores across the UK are also fitted out in our distinctive style, tailored to their local markets. These physical stores
accounted for 63 per cent of the Group’s revenue in FY20, while our online sales accounted for 34 per cent and wholesale accounted

for 3 per cent.

Footasylum offers an extensive range of footwear, apparel and accessories for men, women and children, with no over-reliance on any
particular individual product or stock keeping unit (SKU). We continue to grow our inhouse design team who develop our own brand
apparel and accessories, presenting them as complementary to third party brands. We believe this is not only strategically important in
differentiating us from our competitors, but also forms the key to our ability to be hyper-local and give each of our stores its own
unique character.

Business review and future developments

Underlying EBITDA®* for the 49 week period was £9,189,000 (2019: £2,293,000). The growth in underlying EBITDA is attributed to
improved sales mix (focus on full price), relevant marketing and improvements in operational efficiency. The Company has sustained
its revenue growth across all channels and gross margin has been higher than previously expected for the period finishing at 43.8%
(FY19: 41.9%). The group has incurred large exceptional costs in the period ending 1 February 2020 totalling £3,745,000, including
costs relating to the acquisition by JD Sports Fashion plc of £3,894,000, I[FRS 16 "Leases" adjustment for onerous leases totalling
£106,000, junior VAT costs of £20,000 and restructuring and redundancy costs totalling £578,000. These costs have been offset
against a reversal of a VAT provision of £853,000. All of these items have been classified as exceptional costs as they are material in
size and also non-recurring.

Whilst the board is satisfied with the Company performance and continued progression, Footasylum is not immune to the widely
reported challenges to physical retail in the UK, with lower footfall on many high streets, malls and retail parks, combined with cost
challenges from increasing minimum wage rates and rises in business rates. The Group strategy continues to focus on understanding
and entertaining our consumers. Our product led approach is data driven by our consumer and experienced buying team. This
approach continues to drive our omni channel strategy and digital investment, keeping Footasylum agile, relevant and competitive.

* Underlying EBITDA is stated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and the share-based
payment charge. A reconciliation in full and the impact of IFRS 16 adoption has been detailed in note 3.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Business review and future developments (continued)

Throughout FY21 our retail stores have had significant disruption to trading with several closure periods caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. Our priorities have been to ensure the safety of our colleagues and customers, to preserve financial resources and limit the
impact on profitability. We continue to maintain strict social distancing in our warehouses and have invested in our store estate to
assist distancing. Demand has remained resilient throughout FY21 with consumers readily switching to online channels reflecting the
benefits of an agile omni-channel approach which has been developed over several years. The UK Government has also provided
Covid-19 support to which Footasylum has taken during FY21, this support includes:

- VAT deferment to assist working capital
- Furlough assistance, reimbursing wages
- One year business rates holiday

This support and digital resilience has ensured the Group has been able to remain profitable throughout FY21. Except for the VAT
deferrment noted above all liabilities, including rents, have been seitled timely throughout FY21.

For FY22, the Group is planning to maintain a similar level of its store base and store performance, with continued growth in
profitability. The Group will continue to focus on robust cost control, streamlining and improvements to delivery efficiencies and
savings. The Board continues to maintain its strong focus on cash and working capital management. Inventory will continue to be
carefully managed throughout the period.

Principal risks & uncertainties faced
Effective risk management is critical to meeting the strategic objectives of the Group. The Board of Directors has overall

responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.

The Board of Directors provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial
instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

Risk management is carried out by the Group’s finance department, in accordance with these principles and under policies approved
by the Board of Directors. We have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Company, including those that
would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

The Board continually reviews the potential risks facing the Group and the actions, controls and processes in place to mitigate any
potential adverse impact on the Group. Our risk register is monitored, updated, and considered by the Board on a monthly basis.

Store roll out
This mainly consists of upsizing existing stores, and selectively opening new city centre stores where we have no representation. This
is dependent upon several factors that present risks as well as opportunities, including: :
- the identification of suitable vacant sites in appropriate locations;
- the negotiation of acceptable financial terms;

the general macroeconomic conditions in the UK.

There may be competition for suitable sites and there can be no assurances that the Company will be able to open new stores on a
timely basis or that new sites will be secured on acceptable terms.

The Group has a dedicated property team that carefully selects suitable vacant sites, taking account of the local population in the target
demographic, to ensure the best locations are selected.

There is a breadth of input into this process and support for the property team, including from Buying & Merchandise, Retail and the
Directors.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Principal risks & uncertainties faced (continued)

Reputation and brand :

The development and retention of the Footasylum brand is fundamental to the continued success of the Group. Any failure to protect
and manage the brand could lead to a reduction in consumer loyalty and repeat purchases. This could be caused by a poor product
selection, an inferior in-store experience, or poor customer service. In addition, any compromise of our ethical sourcing policy could
have a significant impact on the reputation and brand of the Group.

The Board continually monitors the performance of the Group and that of competitors to ensure that the Footasylum brand continues
to grow. :

IT and cyber security

We rely significantly on the uninterrupted operation of our [T network and systems for the efficient running of our business
operations. Any significant disruption to these systems could have an adverse effect on the proper functioning of our stores and online
sites.

Footasylum has significantly upgraded its IT systems to better manage business growth. This has reduced the risk of malicious attacks,
data breaches or viruses which could lead to business interruption and reputational damage. This risk continues to evolve in our digital
world, the board continue to monitor this and upgrade where required.

Logistics
Should our logistics solution fail this would have an adverse effect on the proper functioning of our stores and online sites, and the
business could incur extra delivery costs in the short term, miss out on sales and lose stock in transit.

Footasylum is committed to keeping its logistics options under review.

Should a provider for consumer deliveries fail, we can move volume through another channel for both UK and international deliveries
with relatively minimal disruption to normal service.

Third-party manufacturers
The Company outsources the production of its own brand products to external manufacturers with appropriate expertise and capacity.
A material proportion of these own brand products are manufactured overseas.

The inability of third-party manufacturers to produce and dispatch orders in a timely manner, to the required quality, or to comply
with their obligations or other regulations and laws (including the Anti-Bribery Act) could have a negative impact on Footasylum’s
business and wholesale operations.

Footasylum has an inspection and quality control process which it is continuing to review and improve and requires all third-party
manufacturers to comply with all applicable labour, health and safety laws and regulations.

Key management personnel

Footasylum’s operational and financial performance depends on the ability to attract and retain effective personnel, and on the efforts
and abilities of key senior personnel. Such personnel are vitally important assets to the Company and, following the loss of such a
team member, Footasylum may not be able to find an effective replacement in a timely manner and the business may be disrupted or
damaged. The Company’s remuneration policy, including long-term incentives, is designed to attract and retain the best people.

Footasylum is a desirable place to work, with a pfoneering approach to online retail technology and a fresh and exciting range of
products.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Principal risks & uncertainties faced (continued)

Business continuity and health and safety

Fire, flood or a significant incident at a store, head office or our warehouses could make it impossible to trade/work from that site
temporarily or for a longer period: Any risk could be exacerbated by the health and safety implications for our people, the public in
our stores and contractors we employ.

A detailed Disaster Recovery plan is in place and this is regularly tested, reviewed and updated to reflect the rapid changes in the
business. Having two functional warehouses reduces the risk of not being able to supply stock. We have well-established health and
safety training and policies and are compliant with all regulations and standards and keep these under review..

COVID-19

The COVID-19 outbreak is a global public health crisis. We will continue to monitor the situation and adapt to government guidelines
and changing consumer sentiment. Being an omni channel retailer, our strong digital platform continued to trade well throughout
lockdown and store closure.

Competitive envirc and brands

The lifestyle fashion industry is highly competitive, and our peer group includes general and specialist retailers. There has also been
challenges to the wider UK retail sector which have resulted in certain businesses entering administration. This competition puts us
under pressure to differentiate our product offering in the form of access to brands and their respective ranges.

Footasylum is dependent on ongoing relationships with brand partners and their ability to remain desirable to consumers. Third-party
brands may prefer to supply our competitors with high-demand product rather than to us, they may try to impose policies regarding
brand and product presentation as a condition of continuing supply that we feel unable to comply with or focus more on their own
direct to consumer (DTC) mode!. This could mean that Footasylum is unable to compete successfully against current competitors or
future new entrants to the market, leading to a material adverse impact on the Company’s revenue and profitability.

The Footasylum brand is highly distinctive and operates in a different space to other retailers. The in-store experience, combined with
a clear focus on regional tailoring, fresh product and a mix of large brands with own brands sets Footasylum apart. By investing in
store estate and online presence, and ensuring our product lines are current and tailored, the Group is able to remain nimble to the
actions of competitors. )

The Group also communicates effectively with its consumer base, engendering loyalty and strengthening the Footasylum brand.

The economy and Brexit
As a majority of the Group's revenue is generated in the UK a significant decline in the UK economy and/or in consumer confidence
could have a material adverse impact on Footasylum’s business.

The impact on the Group's business of the UK s exit from the European Union (EU) is continously being monitored post-1 January
2021. Sales to EU customers contributed to <5% of total revenue in FY20. Although we will continue to market and promote our
goods to both businesses and customers based in the EU, we do not expect the UK formally exiting the EU to have a significant
financial impact on the Group. '

Footasylum has a diversified business model with three principal channels (in store, online and wholesale) and continues to invest in
all channels to mitigate any future events that could affect one or more of them.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Principal risks & uncertainties faced (continued)

Legislation, regulation and politics

Any change in legislation, regulation or tax legislation may have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Group. Such changes may
require extensive system and operating changes, including the establishment of new policies and training programmes. These may be
difficult to implement and could increase Footasylum’s cost of doing business. Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations
could expose the Group to legal risks, including enforcement action and/or fines, which could have a material adverse impact on the
business. ’

In conjunction with external advisors, the Group has a robust process for identifying new legislation and regulation with the potential
to impact on our operations, well in advance of its implementation. This allows the Group to carefully plan for the post-
implementation environment and ensure compliance with all aspects of the new regulation or legislation.

Acquisition by JD Sports Fashion PLC and CMA

On 18 February 2019, JD Sports Fashion plc (JD Sports) acquired 19,579,964 Footasylum plc (Footasylum) shares at prices between
50 pence and 75 pence per share, representing 18.7% of the issued ordinary share capital. On 18 March 2019, in conjunction with the
Board at Footasylum, JD Sports announced the terms of an offer to be made for the remaining 81.3% of the ordinary share capital of
Footasylum at a price of 82.5 pence per ordinary share. This offer was declared unconditional on 12 April 2019 with acceptances
received for a total of 78,176,481 shares, representing a further 74.8% of the issued ordinary share capital. The Board believes that JD
Sports is a well-established business with a strong reputation for lifestyle fashion and, with JD Sports' offering being differentiated to
Footasylum's, it is complementary as a Group. Subsequently on the 19th September 2019 Footasylum re-registered from a Public
Limited Company to a Private Limited Company.

On 17 May 2019, the Competition and Markets Authoriy (CMA) served an initial enforcement order under section 72(2) of the
Enterprise Act 2002 on Pentland Group plc (Pentland) and JD Sports, in relation to the completed acquisition by JD Sports of
Footasylum.

On the 1 1th May 2020 the CMA concluded that the merger between JD Sports and Footasylum (together, the Parties) (the Merger)
would result in a substantial lessening of competition (SLC) in sports-inspired casual footwear and apparel products sold both in
stores and online. As a result, shoppers would be worse off. Although JD Sports has already bought Footasylum, the two businesses
are currently held separate. Therefore, the CMA have decided that the most effective way to address the competition issues identified

. is for JD Sports to sell Footasylum in its entirety to a suitable buyer, who will maintain and invest in the business. The CMA will
allow JD Sports a reasonable timeframe to do so, particularly given the current Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic. Selling
Footasylum means it will continue to operate as an independent business separate from JD Sports, ensuring that shoppers - many of
whom are young consumers - continue to benefit from having the good deals and quality, range and other benefits that competition
brines.

On the 13th November 2020 the Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT) issued a judgement in the appeal brought by JD Sports. The
Tribunal quashed the decision of the CMA in it's Final Report (FR) in so far as its conclusions were based on the CMA’s assessment
of the likely effects of the COVID-19 pandemic (i) on the relevant markets, (ii) on the merging parties and/or the merged entity, and
(iii) on the competitive constraints likely to apply to the merging parties and/or the merged entity where they did not have the
necessary evidence from which it could properly draw such conclusions. The divestment process is currently placed on hold while
further investigations are being conducted. '

On 1 December 2020 the CMA applied for permission to appeal the CAT’s recent judgement in the JD Sports/Footasylum case, this
was denied. On 7 December 2020 the CMA has renewed its application at the Court of Appeal.

While the CMA investigations continue, under the the CMA’s guidance, the Footasylum business has to be maintained as a going
concern and sufficient resources have to be made available for the development of the Footasylum business, on the basis of its pre-
Merger business plans (as updated by Footasylum from time to time in the ordinary course of business), and having due regard to the
need to maintain and/or preserve the Footasylum business as an effective competitor and to all relevant circumstances, as reasonably
determined by the CMA.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Qur responsibilities
We are serious about our responsibilities to the environment, our employees, our partners, our communities and the human rights
matters we are able to influence. Delivering for our shareholders and other stakeholders means putting a focus on sustainability in

every corner of our business.

COVID-19 .
- The COVID-19 outbreak is a global public health crisis. In line with government guidelines we carried out a full risk assessment at

Footasylum and have taken mitigating actions across retail, distribution centres and head office.

Environment
We aim to minimise our impact on the environment across the business, especially through reducing waste, and consider what this
means in our supply chain, for our logistics and at,our premises.

Ethical sourcing
We endeavour to comply with all relevant legislation in each country we operate in, strive to meet all best practices and expect all third-

parties we work with to do the same. Footasylum will only do business with contractors who respect the human rights of their
employees and we require them and any organisations that supply them to comply with our Code of Conduct and Ethical Sourcing
Policies. h

Health and safety

Health and safety is always high on our business agenda and is championed by management at all levels. With the recent changes at
Footasylum and further changes to the regulatory landscape, our health and safety policies and practices are under constant review.

The Board receives monthly reports on slips/trips/falls and other injuries to staff or consumers. We also include ‘near-miss’ reporting
and ensure that any incidents are tracked, and the appropriate action taken, such as training.or a review to our processes. Our aim is to
move well beyond compliance to achieve a ‘gold standard’. We also protect our employees’ well-being by offering an anonymous
support line that provides our people with confidential advice on managing stress or other issues.

Training
We are committed to enabling our employees to build their careers wherever they are in the business. No door at Footasylum is closed
and we see it as our mission to foster talent and ensure our people have every opportunity to progress and fulfil their potential.

Diversity

There is no place at Footasylum for discrimination on the grounds of disability, gender, sexual orientation, religion, nationality, ethnic
background or race. We value the diversity in our business and strongly believe it is an important contributor to our ability to stay ‘on-
trend’ and understand our consumers.

Section 172 statement

This statement sets out how the Directors have approached and met their responsibilities under section 172 Companies Act 2006 and
in particular how the Directors have satisfied themselves that they have acted in a way which is most likely to promote the success of
the company for the benefit of its members as a whole and in doing having regard for stakeholders interests. As such, the Board have
constdered (amongst other things):

a. the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,

b. the interests of the company's employees;

c. the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

d. the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;

e. the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
f. the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

Page 6



DocuSign Envelope ID: 04639787-05ED-4491-BF85-D9FAO0D29C6F6

FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Strategic Report
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Section 172 statement (continued)

a. The Board gives significant consideration through the assessment of various board papers to the likely long term benefits to the
Group when considering investment in new businesses and projects, confirming that it is the Board’s ultimate objective to deliver long
term sustainable earnings growth to enhance total shareholder returns.

b. The Board has supported the investment in and development of a human capital management system in the form of FA Presents
which has progressed during the course of the financial period to establish a better system of communication with the Group’s
employees, which has been especially useful during the COVID-19 crisis as it has been necessary to communicate with our people on
a frequent basis during this time.

c. the Board considers its relationships with suppliers as a fundamental aspect of the ongoing success of Footasylum. This Strategic
Report notes the importance with which the Board takes its responsibility to act in a responsible and ethical manner with all
stakeholders including suppliers, employees and customers.

d. The Board has ensured that there has been a focus on key environmental goals during the course of the financial period, including
regarding energy efficiency and waste reduction.

e. The Board ensures that Fbotasylum operates in a manner which encourages the protection of the people working for our suppliers,
such that they are treated with respect and that their health and safety and basic human rights are safeguarded and promoted. This is
especially important as we continue to consider and maintain employee's health and safety during COVID-19.

f. The Board behave responsibly toward our shareholders and treat them fairly and equally so they too may benefit from the successful
delivery of our plan.

Key performance indicators
The primary performance indicators used by management are:

Statutory 1AS17 Statutory 1AS 17
Results ** Results Results ** Results
FY20 FY20 FY19
£'000 £'000 £'000 Change Change
Revenue 248,711 248,711 227,349 9.4% 9.4%
Gross profit 108,482 108,482 95,292 13.8% 13.8%
Underlying EBITDA * : 25,496 9,189 2,293 1,012.1% 300.8%
Number of stores 69 69 65 62% 6.2%
* Underlying EBITDA is stated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and the share-based

payment charge.
** The statutory results include the adjustments required for the IFRS 16 adoption using the modified retrospective approach.

Performance
Revenue increased 9.4 per cent from further store rollouts and upsizes, increasing volume of online traffic and the growth of the

Company's wholesale business. Revenue growth was seen across all channels and web increased participation.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

‘Strategic Report )
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Key performance indicators (continued)

FY20 FY19
£m £m Change
Total Reveoue by Channel 248 227 9.3%
Store 155 146 6.2%
Web 85 76 11.8%
Wholesale 8 5 60.0%
FY20 FY19
Revenue Participation PPN PPN Change
Store 62.5% 64.3% -1.8%
Web 34.3% 33.5% 0.8%
Wholesale 32% 2.2% 1.0%

Gross profit has incrcased by 13.8 per cent year-on-year which reflects the growth in revenue. Gross margin of 43.8 per cent shows
a increase of 1.9 basis points from 41.9 per cent in the prior year due to stronger product offering with less clearance stock

Underlying EBITDA is a measure of the underlying profitability of the business and is widely used in the retail industry. This has
increased by 300.8 per cent on prior year which reflects managements drive to reduce operating costs and increase full price sales.

During the year no new stores were opened and no stores were closed.

By prder of the Board
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Report of the Directors
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

The directors present their report together with the audited financial statements for the period ended | February 2020.

Results
The consolidated results for the year and financial position of the group are as shown in the attached financial statements.

Political donations
There were no political donations made in the current or previous financial period.

Employment of disabled persons

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concemed. In the
event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and that appropriate
training is arranged. It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as
possible, be identical to that of other employees.

Financial risk management

Details of the Directors’ assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties that could affect the business are set out within the Strategic Report.
The Board manages internal risk through the ongoing review of the Company’s risk register and external risk through monitoring the economic
and regulatory environment and market conditions.

Future developments
The Strategic Report on pages 1 to 7 sets out the likely future developments of the company.

Employee involvement
The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them informed on matters affecting them as

employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the Group. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings, newsletters
and announcements.

Going Concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
having particular regard to the net assets position of the Group, the access to a revolving credit facility (RCF), confirmation of parental support
and its forecast performance for the next 12 months. In assessing the forecast performance of the Group, the Directors have considered the impact
of COVID-19 which is currently resulting in Government restrictions to close our stores. The forecasts assume our stores will re-open at the end
of March 2021 but should this be delayed, the Directors have considered mitigating actions which would limit the financial impact. To date, the
Group has been able to mitigate the financial impact of the pandemic and expects to be able to do so going forward.

The Group is in the tinal stages, with HSBC, ot'amending the current RCF agreement due to expire 6 July 2021, extending the term out to 6 July
2022. This extension will provide adequate funding for the next 12 months, allowing the Group access to £30m until 31 December 2021,
dropping down to £17.5m thereafter. Additionally the ultimate parent company, JD Sports Fashion plc, has confirmed continued financial
support, so long as Footasylum Ltd is a part of its Group, for a period of 12 months from the date of signature of the financial statements. As
explained on page 5, the CMA review into JD Sports Fashion plc’s acquisition of Footasylum remains ongoing. There is a potential risk that JD
Sports Fashion plc may be required to divest of its investment in Footasylum, which could occur within 12 months of the date of these financial
statements. The Directors have considered this potential scenario, and the impact this may have on the entity’s going concern — given any
purchaser must be an “Approved Purchaser” (as defined in the Final Undertakings document published by the CMA on 16 July 2020) which
includes having access to or be able to secure appropriate financial resources and expertise to enable the Footasylum business to be an effective
competitor in the market and any purchaser must demonstrate that it has an appropriate business plan to maintain and operate the Footasylum
business as a viable and active business then the Director’s believe there is a reasonable expectation that any potential purchaser would operate
the business as a going concern for the foreseeable future. -

Furthermore, under the the CMA’s guidance, the Footasylum business has to be maintained as a going concern and sufficient resources have to be
made available for the development of the Footasylum business, on the basis of its pre-Merger business plans (as updated by Footasylum from
time to time in the ordinary course of business), and having due regard to the need to maintain and/or preserve the Footasylum business as an
effective competitor and to all relevant circumstances, as reasonably determined by the CMA.

Thus, the directors consider that the Group can continue in operation as a going concemn for the foreseeable future, adopting the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements.

° Page 9
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Report of the Directors
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Directors
The directors of the company were as follows:

Barry Bown

Phillip Glenn (appointed 16 July 2019)
Danielle Davies (resigned 27 June 2019)
Clare Nesbitt (resigned 16 July 2019)
Stephen Robertson (resigned 12 April 2019)
Brendan Hynes (resigned 12 April 2019)

Post balance sheet events

On the 11th May 2020 the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA) concluded that the merger between JD Sports Fashion plc (JD Sports) and
Footasylum pic (Footasylum — together, the Parties) (the Merger) would result in a substantial lessening of competition (SLC) in sports-inspired
casual footwear and apparel products sold both in stores and online. As a result, shoppers would be worse off. Although JD Sports has already
bought Footasylum, the two businesses are currently held separate. Therefore, the CMA have decided that the most effective way to address the
competition issues we identified is for JD Sports to sell Footasylum in its entirety to a suitable buyer, who will maintain and invest in the
business. The CMA will allow JD Sports a reasonable timeframe to do so, particularly given the current Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.
Selling Footasylum means it will continue to operate as an independent business separate from JD Sports, ensuring that shoppers - many of whom
are young consumers - continue to benefit from having the good deals and quality, range and other benefits that competition brings.

On the 13th November 2020 the Competition Appeal Tribunal (CAT) issued a judgement in the appeal brought by JD Sports. The Tribunal
quashed the decision of the CMA in it's Final Report (FR) in so far as its conclusions were based on the CMA'’s assessment of the likely effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic (i) on the relevant markets, (ii) on the merging parties and/or the merged entity, and (iii) on the competitive
constraints likely to apply to the merging parties and/or the merged entity where they did not have the necessary evidence from which it could
properly draw such conclusions. The divestment process is currently placed on hold while further investigations are being conducted.

On 1 December 2020 the CMA applied for permission to appeal the CAT’s recent judgement in the JD Sports/Footasylum case, this was denied.
On 7 December 2020 the CMA has renewed its application at the Court of Appeal.

Directors’ responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare such financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. They have also chosen to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the Parent Company financial statements, the Directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Parent Company will continue
in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that the Directors:
- properly select and apply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;
provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in [FRSs are insufficient to enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

- make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Report of the Directors
49 Week Period Ended 1 February 2020

Directors’ responsibilities (continued)

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s tr ions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company, and enable them to ensurc that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Comparny and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

+ so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
- the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.
Phillip Glenn ,

Finance Director
Date: 28 January 2021
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Footasylum Limited

@ GrantThornton

Opinion

Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Footasylum Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the 49
week period ended 1 February 2020, which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, Consolidated and Company
Statement of Changes In Equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at
1 February 2020 and of the group’s loss for the period then ended;
the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European
Union;
the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and
the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit

Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those arising as a
consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the
reasonableness of estimates made by the directors and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going concern basis of
preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the group’s future
prospects and performance. :

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date of this report their
effects are subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We
applied a standardised firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the group’s future prospects and
performance. However, no audit should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for a group
associated with these particular events.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Footasylum Limited

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period
of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

"In our evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the risks associated with the group's business model, including effects
arising from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect the group's
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue. In accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent
with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's
report is not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other mfomatlon The other information comprises the information included in the annual report,

other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in thé financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matter on which we are required to report under the Companies Act 2006
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion: .

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or

the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or .

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Footasylum Limited

Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page [9), the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.

Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Gk Thomkon UK LLP

Michael Lowe

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Manchester

Date: 29 January 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

DocuSign Envelope 1D: 04639787-05ED-4491-BF85-D9FA0D29C6F6

Impact of IFRS 16

49 Week Period- 49 Week Period| 49 Week Period 52 Week Period
ended I ended 1 ended 1 ended 23
February 2020 February 2020 February February
1AS 17 Adjustment] - 2020 2019
Notes £000 £'000 £000 £000
Revenue ) 2 248,711 - 248,711 227,349
Cost of sales (140,229) - (140,229) (132,057)
"Gross profit 108,482 N 108,482 95,292
Administrative expenses (111,919) 2,169 (109,750) (101,186)
Operating loss (3.437) 2,169 (1,268) (5,894)
Underlying EBITDA* 3 9,189 16,307 25,496 2,293
Depreciation and amortisation 3 (5.724) - (5,724) (5,950)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3 (226) (14,138) (14,364) -
Share-based payments charge 3 (2,931 - (2,931) (2,064)
Operating profit / (loss) before exceptional
items 308 2,169 2,477 (5,721)
Exceptional items 3 (3,745) - (3,745) (173)
Operating loss (3,437) 2,169 (1,268) (5,894)
Finance expense 6 (676) (4,390) (5,066) (347)
Loss before tax (4,113) ~(2,221) (6,334) (6,241)
Al
Taxation 7 323 - 323 (158)
Loss and total comprehensive expense for
the financial period attributable to
shareholders (3,790) (2,221) (6,011) (6,399)

All activities relate to continuing operations.

* Underlying EBITDA is stated as earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, exceptional items and share-
based payments charge and the impact of IFRS 16 adoption has been detailed in note 3.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

> 49 Week Period 52 Week Period

ended 1 ended 23

February . February

2020 2019

£000 £000

_ Loss for the financial period - (6,011) 6,399)
Total comprehensive expense for the period (6,011) (6,399)

Notes 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At At
1 February 23 Fcbruary
. 2020 2019
Notes £000 £°000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 2,209 2,124
Property and equipment 10 27,917 26,758
Right-of-use assets 22 95,703 -
Deferred tax asset 16 ) ) . 603 . 231
126,492 29,113
Current assets
Inventory n 33,926 34,409
Trade and other receivables 12 14,597 11,068
Cash and cash cquivalents 13 ) 3,448 5,301
51,971 50,778
Total assets _ ’ 178,463 79,891
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (36,457) (32,130)
Lease liabilities 14 & 22 (14,352) -
Provisions 15 (1,370) (2,559)
. ) (52,179) (34,689)
_Net current (liabilities) / assets S . . . . (208) 16,089
Non-current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income 14 (35) (6,369)
Net obligation under finance lease
and hire purchase - 14 (156) (249)
Lease liabilities 14& 22 (90,977) -
Provisions ) 15 ) . . (746) . (960)
. ~ (91,914) (7,578).
Total liabilities (144,093) ~ (42,267)
Net assets 34,370 ‘37,624
Equity )
Share capital 21 109 104
Share premium account 3,510 3,510
Retained eamings . 30,751 34,010
Total equity ) . 34,370 37,624
Notes 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:
W G
Phillip Glenn

Finance Director
Company number: 05535565
Date: 28 January 2021
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

49 Week Period 52 Week Period

ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
Notes - £000 £000
Cash generated from operating activities
(Loss) / profit for the period: (6,011) (6,399)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 3 4,443 5,786
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 3 218 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3 1,063 657
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 3 14,364 -
Loss / (gain) on disposal of tangible assets 3 24 27
Net finance charge - 6 5,066 347
Share-based payments charge 3 2,931 2,064
Taxation charge 7 (323) 158
Decrease in stock 483 1,568
Increase in debtors 2,825y (3,628)
Increase in creditors * 4,950 9,010
Corporation tax paid (753) (1,221)
Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities 23,629 . 8,369
Investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets 9 (1,156) (1,472)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 10 (9,320) (12,521)
Sales of property, plant and equipment 3 24 15
Net cash used in investing activities _(10,452) (13,978)
Financing activities
Lease repayments 19& 22 (12,072) (188)
Interest paid 22 (4,963) (319)
Proceeds from the issue of ordinary share capital 5 -
Drawdown of revolving credit facility 14 2,000 -
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (15,030) (507)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,853) (6,115)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 13 ) 5,301 11,416
- Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 13 3,448 5,301

* Net wages and salaries are paid on the 25th of each month or the nearest working day if falling on a weekend. Due to prior year
end being Saturday 23rd February 2019 a pay t of £2.2m relating to net wages and salaries costs was charged 1o the Income
Statement and accrued for as at 23rd February 2019. In comparison, the net wages and salaries payment for the 49 week period
ending Ist February 2020 was paid out on the 25th January 2020.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Reconciliation of 52 week period to 23 February 2019

Retained
Share  Preference Share earnings / Total
capital Shares  premium (losses) equity
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 24 February 2018 104 - 3,510 38,596 42,210

Comprehensive Income:

Loss for the period - - - (6,399) (6,399)
_104 - 3,510 32,197 35,811

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity: )
Share-based payments charge - - - 1,813 1,813
Balance at 23 February 2019 104 - 3,510 34,010 37,624
Reconciliation of 49 week period to 1- February 2020
. Retained
Share  Preference Share earnings / Total
capital Shares  premium (losses) equity
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Balance at 23 February 2019 104 - 3,510 34,010 37,624
Comprehensive Income:
Loss for the period - - - (6,011) (6,011)
Issue of share capital S - - - S
109 - 3,510 27,999 31,617
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
Share-based payments charge - - - 2,752 2,752
Balance at 1 February 2020 109 - 3,510 30,751 34,369
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Company Statement of Changes in Equity

Reconciliation of 52 week period to 23 February 2019

Retained
Share  Preference Share earnings / Total
capital Shares  premium (losses) equity
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 24 February 2018 104 - 3,510 38,589 42,203
Comprehensive Income:
Profit for the period - - - (6,399) (6,399)
104 - 3,510 32,190 35,804
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
Share-based payments charge - - - 1,813 1,813
Balance at 23 February 2019 104 - 3,510 34,003 37,617
Reconciliation of 49 week period to 1 February 2020
Retained
Share  Preference Share earnings / Total
capital Shares  premium (losses) equity
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 23 February 2019 104 - 3,510 34,003 37,617
Comprehensive Income:
Loss for the period - - - (6,011) (6,011)
Issue of share capital S - - - S
109 - 3,510 27,992 31,611
Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity:
Share-based payments charge - - - 2,752 2,752
Balance at 1 February 2020 109 - 3,510 30,744 34,363
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Company Statement of Financial Position
. At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
Notes £000 £'000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 2,209 1,510
Property and equipment 10 27,977 27,371
Right-of-use asscts 22 95,703 -
Investments 26 1
Deferred tax asset 16 . 603 231
) ) 126,518 29,113
Current assets
Inventory 11 33,926 34,409
Trade and other receivables 12 14,571 11,068
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3,448 5,301
) . L ) 51,945 50,778
Total assets L ) 178,463 79,891
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 (36,464) (32,255)
Lease liabilitics 14 & 22 (14,352) -
Provisions . . 15 ) (1,370) {2,559)
- (52,186) . (34,814)
Net current assets . . ) (241) 15,964
Non-current liabilities
Accruals and deferred income 14 (35) (6,251)
Net obligation under finance Icase and hire
purchase 14 (156) (249)
Lease liabilities 14&22 (90,977) -
Provisions ) 15 (746) (969)
) ] ) (91,914) (7,460):
Total liabilities (144,100) (42,274)
Net assets ) 34,363 37,617
Equity
Share capital 21 109 104
Share premium account 3,510 3,510
Retained eaminﬁs_A . 30,744 , 34,003
Total equity 34,363 37,617

Company profit for the financial year
The company has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not

presented its own profit and loss account in these financial statements. The company loss after tax is £6,011,000 (2019:
£6,399,000).

Notes 1 to 25 form part of these financial statements.

On behalf of the Board:
Phillip Glean % am.» .

Finance Director
Company number: 05535565
Datc: 28 January 2021
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

L1 General information

Footasylum Limited (the “Company™) is a company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in the UK.

Footasylum Limited is incorporated in the United Kingdom. The registered office was Sandbrook House, Sandbrook Park, Rochdale,
Lancashire, OL11 IRY, but was changed on 16 May 2019 to Edinburgh House, Hollins Brook Way, Bury, BL9 8RR.

The principal activity of the company is the retail of sports and fashion footwear and clothing.
12 Basis of preparation

The Consolidated and Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU, and the International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee (‘IFRIC’) interpretations
endorsed by the EU and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings (the "Group") is pounds sterling and the financial statements
are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through the Consolidated Income Statement.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRSs requires management to imake judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
‘circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

In preparing the financial statements of the pareﬁt company, disclosure exemptions have been taken advantage of, in accordance with
FRS 101. Therefore these financial statements do not include:

- A statement of cash flows and related notes

- The requirements of 1AS 24 related party disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more
members of the group as they are wholly owned within the group

- Presentation of comparative reconciliations for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

- Disclosure of key management personnel compensation

- Capital management disclosures

- The effect of future accounting standards not adopted

- Certain share based payment disclosures

- Disclosures in relation to impairment of assets

- Disclosures in respect of financial instruments (other than disclosures required as a result of recording financial instruments
at fair valne)

The judgements, estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods present in these financial
statements and have been applied consistently by all Group entities.

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, having particular regard to the net assets position of the Group, the access to a revolving credit facility (RCF),
confirmation of parental support and its forecast performance for the next 12 months. In assessing the forecast performance of the
Group, the Directors have considered the impact of COVID-19 which is currently resulting in Government restrictions to close our
stores. The forecasts assume our stores will re-open at the end of March 2021 but should this be delayed, the Directors have considered
mitigating actions which would limit the financial impact. To date, the Group has been able to mitigate the financial impact of the
pandemic and expects to be able to do so going forward.
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FOOTASYLUM LIMITED .

Notes to the financial statements
1 Accounting policies

1.2 Basis of preparation (continued)

The Group is in the final stages, with HSBC, of amending the current RCF agreement due to expire 6 July 2021, extending the term out
to 6 July 2022. This extension will provide adequate funding for the next 12 months, allowing the Group access to £30m until 31
December 2021, dropping down to £17.5m thereafter. Additionally the ultimate parent company, JD Sports Fashion plc, has confirmed
continued financial support, so long as Footasylum Ltd is a part of its Group, for a period of 12 months from the date of signature of the
financial statements. As explained on page 5, the CMA review into JD Sports Fashion plc’s acquisition of Footasylum remains ongoing.
There is a potential risk that JD Sports Fashion plc may be required to divest of its investment in Footasylum, which could occur within
12 months of the date of these financial statements. The Directors have considered this potential scenario, and the impact this may have
on the entity’s going concern — given any purchaser must be an “Approved Purchaser” (as defined in the Final Undertakings document
published by the CMA on 16 July 2020) which includes having access to or be able to secure appropriate financial resources and
expertise to enable the Footasylum business to be an effective competitor in the market and any purchaser must demonstrate that it has
an appropriate business plan to maintain and operate the Footasylum business as a viable and active business then the Director’s believe
there is a reasonable expectation that any potential purchaser would operate the business as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

Furthermore, under the the CMA’s guidance, the Footasylum business has to be maintained as a going concern and sufficient resources
have to be made available for the development of the Footasylum business, on the basis of its pre-Merger business plans (as updated by
Footasylum from time to time in the ordinary course of business), and having due regard to the need to maintain and/or preserve the
Footasylum business as an effective competitor and to all relevant circumstances, as reasonably determined by the CMA.

Thus, the directors consider that the Group can continue in operation as a going concern for the foreseeable future, adopting the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Group continues to monitor the potential impact of other new standards and interpretations which may be endorsed and require
adoption by the Group in future reporting periods. The Group has summarised the expected impact of standards, amendments or
interpretations issued by the 1ASB, but not yet applicable, in 1.17.

13 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with adopted IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities is considered to surround inventory, due to the seasonal nature of the Group’s retail businesses and the judgement
required in assessing the recoverability of its carrying value. This is discussed further below: .

Provisions to Write Inventories Down to Net Realisable Value (Estimate)

The Group makes provisions for obsolescence, mark downs and shrinkage based on historical experience, the quality of the current
season buy, market trends, management estimates of future events and an overall assessment of likely inventory discounting in the
future. The provision requires estimates for shrinkage, the expected future selling price of items and identification of aged and obsolete
items. The value of the year end provision and the charge to the Income Statement for the year are disclosed in note 11.

When determining the required inventory provision, management disaggregate stock by a combination of season, product type, gender
and other specific attributes (for example, brand). Management also make reference to the value of inventory sold below cost both
historically and subsequent to the period end. The provision calculation is more specific than the prior period basis where a more general
aged basis has been used.

Provision for HMRC (Estimate) .

Valuation of HMRC provisions — The Group holds provisions for expected regulatory and legislative costs that it expects to incur.
Management exercises judgement to determine the amount of these provisions with reference to past experience and other known
factors. Each provision is considered separately and the amount provided reflects the best estimate of the most likely amount, being the
single most likely amount in a range of possible outcomes. In some cases, it can be difficult to predict the outcome and actual results
may differ from this assessment. Certain HRMC provisions have been released during the period (see note 3) following the availability
of additional information.
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13 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Provision for onerous leases (Estimate)

The group makes provision for onerous property leases on specific stores based on anticipated future cash outflows relating to the
contractual lease cost less potential sublease income. Significant estimates include expected cash out flows, discount rates and potential
sub lease income. Had the discount rate been reduced by 1% then the provision would be £31,000 higher.

Discount rates are targely derived from market data, and these rates are intended to be long term in nature so therefore should be
reasonably stable in the short term. However, the models are sensitive to changes in these rates. An increase by a factor of 1% has been
applied in the sensitised scenarios

Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Non-current Other Assels

Property, plant and equipment and non-current other assets are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is not recoverable. A cash- generating unit is an individual store. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting period date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would be held (net of depreciation) if no impairment had been
realised. The impairment charge for the year is disclosed in note 10.

Leases

Under IFRS 16, the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease. If the rate implicit in the lease is not readily available then payments are discounted on a
lease by lease basis by taking UK BBB Corporate bond yields as a reference rate, adjusting for Footasylum's incremental cost of
borrowing and adjusting for lease specifics such as property types.

14 Revenue
Revenue with customers is measured based on the five-step model under IFRS 15: ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’:

1. identify the contract with the customer;

2. identify the performance obligations in the contract;

3. determine the transaction price;

4. allocate the transaction price to separate performance obligations in the contract; and
5. recognise revenues when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied.

Revenue is measured through, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added
taxes. Goods supplied provides customers with a right of return within a specified period and this gives rise to variable consideration
under IFRS 15. The right of return asset is recognised within inventory, with the refund liability due to customers on return of their
goods recognised within trade and other payables.

In the case of goods sold through retail stores, revenue is recognised when we have satisfied the performance obligation of transferring
the goods to the customer at the point of sale, less provision for returns. Accumulated experience is used to estimate and provide for
such returns at the time of the sale. Retail sales are usually in cash, by debit card or by credit card.

In the case of goods sold on the intemnet, revenue is recognised when we have satisfied the performance obligation of transferring the
goods to the customer, which is the point of delivery to the customer. Transactions are settled by credit card or payment card. Provisions
are made for internet credit notes based on the expected leve! of returns, which in turn is based upon the historical rate of returns.

In the case of goods sold to other businesses via wholesale channels, revenue is recognised when we have satisfied the performance
obligation of transferring the goods to the customer upon delivery. There are no significant contract assets or liabilities.

No significant judgement has been applied in the application of this accounting standard.
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15 Intangible assets

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is not amortised
but is tested annually for impairment.

Software development costs (including website development costs) are capitalised as intangible assets if the technical and commercial
feasibility of the project has been demonstrated, the future economic benefits are probable, the Group has an intention and ability to
complete and use or sell the software and the costs can be measured reliably. Costs that do not meet these criteria are expensed as
incurred.

Software development is stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any recognised impairment loss. Software development
costs are being amortised on a straight line basis over a useful life of 2-7 years. '

16 Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at purchase cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of assets less their residual value over their estimated useful lives, on the following

basis:

Motor vehicles - 25% reducing balance

Fixtures and fittings - 10% straight line or over the term of the lease
Computer equipment - 17 - 25% straight line

Plant and machinery - 20% straight line

Assets under construction - C 0%

The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate, or if there is
an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.

Assets under the course of construction are not depreciated until they are ready for use.

17 Leases

The Group’s leases predominantly relate to property leases for each store site, however the Group’s lease portfolio also includes other
assets such as motor vehicles and trucks. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of on average 10 years but may have
extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

In FY2019, leases of property, plant and equipment were classified as either finance or operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 24 February 2019, on adoption of IFRS 16 “Leases™ leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group in the Consolidated Statement of Financials Position. In adopting
IERS 16 “Leases”, the Group applied the modified retrospective approach and has not restated comparatives for FY2019. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Both
principal and finance cost elements of lease payments are recognised within financing cash flows within the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows. The depreciation charge recognised on the right-of-use assets is being charged to administration expenses in the Group’s
Statement of Profit and Loss, in-line with where depreciation has previously been recorded.

Liabilities arising from leases are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

~ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

- variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

— the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and,

-~ payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that option.
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L7 Leases (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate being the rate that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:
— uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not

have recent third party financing, and
— makes adjustments specific to the lease conditions.’

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:
— the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

-— any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and dilapidation provisions; and
— any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less or leases on adoption date
which has a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small items of office and studio equipment.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the
lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Where the Group receives contributions and incentives from landlords at the start of the lease, these are recorded against the right-of-use
asset. Prior to the adoption of IFRS 16 on 24 February 2019 the Group recorded contributions and incentives received from landlords as
liabilities and amortised the balance against the rent expense recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss over the initial
term of the lease.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are linked to sales generated from a particular store site. For individual sites,
up to 32% of lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from 6% to 10% of sales. Variable
payment terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed costs base for newly established sites. Variable lease
payments that depend on sales are recognised in admin expenses within the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the period in
which the condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Extension and termination options are included in a number of property and equipment leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective lessor. We have identified the inclusion of

extensions and termination options within the lease term as a significant judgement. Refer to significant accounting estimates and
uncertainties section of the accounting policies for further details.

1.8 Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the weighted average principle and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and production or conversion costs.

Trade discounts and other supplier rebates are deducted from the cost of inventory.
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L9 Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade
and other payables.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any expected future credit losses.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents only for the purpose of the cash flow
statement.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into pounds sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the
statement of financial position date.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into pounds sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any expected losses.

110 Exceptional costs

Items that are material in size and/or non-recurring in nature are presented as exceptional items in the income statement. The directors
are of the opinion that the separate recording of exceptional items provides helpful information about the Group's underlying business
performance. Events which may give rise to the classification of items as exceptional include restructuring of businesses, gains or losses
on the disposal or impairment of assets and other significant non recurring gains or losses.

.11 Dividends

Equity dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. Interim equity dividends are recognised when paid. Final equity
dividends are recognised when approved by the shareholders at an Annual General Meeting. Dividends on shares recognised as
liabilities are recognised as expenses and classified within interest payable.

L2 Pensions

Defined contribution pension plan

The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan for its employees. A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. Once the contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment
obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they fall due. Amounts not paid are shown in accruals as a
liability in the statement of financial position. The assets of the plan are held separately from the Group in independently-administered
funds.
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L13 Provisions for liabilities

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Group a legal or constructive obligation that probably requires
settlement by a transfer of economic benefit, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the income statement in the period that the Group becomes aware of the obligation, and are
measured at the best estimate at the statement of financial position date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into
account relevant risks and uncertainties. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted as
appropriate.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the statement of financial position.
1.14  Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except that a change
attributable to an item of income and expense recognised as other comprehensive income or to an item recognised directly in equity is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the reporting date
in the countries where the Company and the Group operate and generate income.

Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed by the statement of
financial position date, except that: )

» The recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of
deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits; and

« Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have been met.
Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of business combinations, when deferred
tax is recognised on the differences between the fair values of assets acquired and the future tax deductions available for them and the

differences between the fair values of liabilities acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the reporting date.

1.15 Share capital & share premium

Financial instruments issued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial
liability. The Group's ordinary shares are classified as equity instruments.

1.16 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
117 New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations

The Group has adopted the following standards and statements which are effective for the current financial accounting period. The
adoption of these standards are not deemed to have a material impact on the Group’s accounts, except where stated:

. IFRS 16 "Leases"

The Group has adopted IFRS 16 "Leases", applying the modified retrospective approach, and has not restated comparatives for FY2019,
as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new
leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on 24 February 2019.
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117 New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations (continued)

. IFRS 16 "Leases" (continued) .

Adjustments recognised on adoption of IFRS 16

On adoption of IFRS 16 “Leases”, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation tlo leases which had previously been classified as
“operating leases™ under the principles of IAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease

payments, discounted using the lessee’s asset specific incremental borrowing rate as of 24 February 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the property lease liabilities on 24 February 2019 was 3.9%.

For leases previously classified as finance leases the entity recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability
immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application. The
measurement principles of IFRS 16 are only applied after that date.

£'000
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 23 February 2019 141,347
Less discounting using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate of at the date of the initial application o (34,298)
Less adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension and termination options -
Plus other lease commitments -
Plus existing finance lease liability at 23 February 2019 478
Lease liability recognised as at 24 February 2019 @ 107,527
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 12,328
Non-current lease liabilities . 95,199

@ The disclosed lease commitments were undiscounted, whilst the IFRS 16 obligations have been discounted based on incremental
borrowing rates applied to property leases.

@ Under the transitional rules in IFRS 16, leases classified as finance lease under 1AS 17 have not been reassessed. This reconciling
item represents those leases classified as finance leases under IAS 17 on transition

The change in accounting policy affected the following items in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on 24 February 2019:

- Right-of-use assets - Increase by £99.2m

- Lease liabilities - Increase by £107.0m

- Lease incentive liabilities - Decrease by £7.3m
- Dilapidations provision - Decrease by £0.5m

Practical expedients applied
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

— The use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

— Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous, on a lease by lease basis;

— The accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 24 February 2019 as short-term leases.
The Group has also applied the recognition exemption for short-term leases;

— The accounting for operating leases with a value of £5,000 or less when new as low value leases;

— On a lease by lease basis for certain leases adjust the right-of-use asset on transition by the amount of any previously recognised
onerous lease provision, as an alternative to performing an impairment review;

— The exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and

— The use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for

contracts entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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1.17 New standards, amendments to standards or interpretations (continued)

The Group has not adopted the following standards as they are not yet effective, but will become effective in future accounting periods:

. IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors”

The LASB has made amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors” which use a consistent definition of materiality throughout International Financial Reporting
Standards and the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, clarify when information is material and incorporate some of the
guidance in IAS | about immaterial information. In particular, the amendments clarify:

- that the reference to obscuring information addresses situations in which the effect is similar to omitting or misstating that
information, and that an entity assesses materiality in the context of the financial statements as a whole, and

- the meaning of ‘primary users of general purpose financial statements’ to whom those financial statements are directed, by defining
them as “existing and potential investors, lenders and other creditors’ that must rely on general purpose financial statements for
much of the financial information they need.

This is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
118 Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions. Fair value is measured by use of the
Black-Scholes simulation. The main assumptions are provided in note 20. All equity-settled share-based payments were settled during
the year.

L19 Tax provisions

Provision is made for known issues based on management's interpretation of legislation and the likely outcome of negotiations or
litigation. The Group's approach is to consider each uncertain tax position separately. Where management considers it is probable that
there will be a future outflow of funds to an authority, a provision is recognised. The position is reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Provisions are measured using management's best estimate of the most likely amount, being the single most likely amount in a range of
possible outcomes. The Group discloses any significant uncertainties in relation to tax matters to the relevant tax authority. The
resolution of tax positions taken by the Group can take a considerable period to conclude, and in some cases it is difficult to predict the
outcome.
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2 Segmental reporting

The Directors consider there to be one operating and reportable segment.

Whilst the business and Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) do review analysis of revenues at a disaggregated level, as
disclosed below, information in relation to assessing business performance and making resource allocation decisions at a level below the
whole business is not made available. In particular, operating profit is not calculated at a level below the whole business. As such, the

Directors consider there to be one operating and reportable segment.

Store
Web
Wholesale

Geographic Information

The following table provides analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical market:

United Kingdom
Europe
Rest of the World

3 Profit / (Loss) before tax

This is stated after charging:

Exceptional costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation on right-of-use assets

Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Exchange differences

Hire of assets - operating leases

Share-based payments charge

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£°000 £000
155,206 146,190
85,047 76,329
8,458 4,830
248,711 227,349
49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£°000 £'000
239,587 221,333
7,904 4,477.
1,220 1,539
248,711 227,349
49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£000 £000
3,745 173
4,443 5,293
218 -
1,063 657
14,364 -
24 27
246 20
- 17,120
2,931 2,064
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3 Profit before tax (continued)

Exceptional costs in the period ending 1 February 2020 relate to transaction costs as part of the acuigisition by JD Sports Fashion plc
and investigation by the CMA of £3,894,000, restructuring costs of £578,000 and other costs of £126,000. These costs have been offset
against a reversal of a VAT surcharge provision of £853,000. All of these items have been classified as exceptional costs since they are

material in size and also non-recurring.

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£000 £'000
Auditor's remuneration
Fees payable for the auditing of the Group's annual accounts 66 63
Other taxation advisory services 28 14
Audit related services 5 5
Other assurance services - 5
Taxation compliance services 8 6
iAS 17
49 Week 49 Week 52 Week
Period Period Period
ended 1 ended 1 ended 23
February February February
2020 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £'000
EBITDA reconciliation
Operating loss (3,437) (1,268) (5,894)
Exceptional items 3.745 3,745 173
Underlying operating profit before share-based payments charge, depreciation and
amortisation 1308 2,477 (5,721)
Depreciation and amortisation 5,724 5,724 5,950
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 226 14,364 -
EBITDA 6,258 22,565 229
Share-based payments charge 2,931 2,931 2,064
Underlying EBITDA ' 9.189 25,496 2,293

Underlying EBITDA is calculated as Group underlying operating profit under IFRS plus depreciation and amortisation. It excludes
exceptional items and IFRS 2 related share-based payments charges. FY20 exceptional expenses of £3,745,000 have been detailed

earlier in note 3.

Impact of IFRS 16 “Leases”

From 24 February 2019, the Group has adopted IFRS 16 “Leases”, applying the modified retrospective approach. The new accounting
standard requires that lease agreements with a fixed or minimum rent are recognised in the Group’s Statement of Financial Position as a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability. I[FRS 16 has a significant impact on the Group’s Statement of Financial Position and Statement of
Comprehensive Income. Adjusted EBITDA has increased on an [FRS 16 basis significantly as the reported cost of operating leases
decreased while depreciation of the right-of-use assets and interest expenses for the lease liability increased. With the current portfolio
of lease agreements, the Group’s profit after tax for the period ended 1 February 2020 has been negatively affected by £2.2m while

EBITDA has been positively affected by £16.3m.
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3 Profit before tax (continued)

Statutory Impact of 1AS 17
Results IFRS 16 Results
£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue 248,711 - 248711
Cost of sales (140,229) - (140,229)
Gross profit 108,482 - 108,482
Administrative expenses (109,750) (2,169) (111,919)
Operating (loss) / profit (1,268) (2,169) (3,437)
Underlying EBITDA 25,496 (16,307) 9,190
Depreciation and amortisation (5,724) - (5,724)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (14,364) 14,138 (226)
Share-based payments charge (2,931) - (2,931)
Operating (loss) / profit before exceptional items 2,478 (2,169) 308
Exceptional items (3,745) - (3,745)
Operating (loss) / profit (1,268) (2,169) (3,437
Finance expense (5,066) 4,390 (676)
(Loss) / profit before tax (6,334) 2,221 4,113)
Taxation 323 - 323
(Loss) / profit and total comprehensive (expense) / income for the financial
period attributable to shareholders (6,011) 2,221 (3,790)

The implementation of IFRS 16 increased total assets as at 24 February 2019 by £107.0m due to the right-of-use assets being

recognised. The total liabilities also increased as a result of the corresponding lease liability. Expense recognised in the year on low
value leases and variable lease payments totalled £734,000 and £1,730,000 respectively.

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Other non-current assets

Current assets

Current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Other current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Share capital
Preference shares
Retained earnings

Statutory Impact of IAS 17
Results IFRS 16 Results
£'000 £'000 £'000
27,977 336 28,313
95,703 (95,703) -
2,812 - 2,812
126,492 (95,367) 31,125
51,971 - 51,971
(14,352) 14,352 -
(37,827) (1,280) (39,107)
(52,179) 13,072 (39,107)
(90,977) 90,977 -
(37) (6.355) (7.292)
(91,914) 84,622 (7.292)
34,370 2,327 36,697
109 - 109
3,510 - 3,510
30,751 2,327 33,078
34,370 2,327 36,697
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4 Staff numbers and costs

Staff costs (including directors) consist of:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

The average number of employees (including directors) during the period was as follows:

Retail
Administration
Warehouse

The staff costs and numbers for the company are not materials different to the Group disclosures made above.

5 Directors’ remuneration

Directors' emoluments

Company contributions to defined contribution pension scheme
Share-based payments

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£000 £000
37,374 35,691
2,173 1,801
394 231
39,941 37,723
49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
Number Number
1,176 1,035

344 288

238 215

1,758 1,538

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February
2020 2019
£000 £000
1,543 592

16 15

2,153 792
3,712 1,399

Directors' remuneration includes 4 executive directors (2019: 4) and 2 non-executive directors (2019: 2). During the period, 2
executive directors resigned, 1 executive director was appointed and 2 non-executive directors resigned.

Included within the directors' emoluments are compensation for loss of office totalling £149,000 and the highest paid director in the

period received emoluments totalling £2,733,000
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6 Finance income and expense

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February

2020 2019
£000 £000

Finance income and expense .
Bank interest payable 571 259
Bank interest receivable ) 8)
Lease interest on right-of-use assets 4,390 -
Other interest payable 107 96
5,067 347

No equity dividends were paid or proposed in 2020 (2019: £nil)

7 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
Group and Company February February
2020 2019
£000 £000
Current tax expense
Current period . 248 198
. Adjustments in respect of prior periods (198) 87
Current tax expense 50 285
Deferred taxation expense / (income)
Current period (149) -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (224) (127)
Deferred tax expense (373) (127)
Total tax expense (323) 158

The tax charge for the period can be reconciled to the group profit per the income statement as follows:

49 Week 52 Week
Period Period
ended 1 ended 23
February February

2020 2019
£000 £000
(Loss) / profit before tax (6,334) (6,241)
(Loss) / profit at the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) (1,203) (1,186)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,302 1,257
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (422) 87
Total tax charge for the period : (323) 158

The deferred tax asset as at 1 February 2020 has been calculated based on a rate of 19% based on when the Group expects the deferred
tax liability to reverse.
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8 Subsidiaries

The following companies were the undertakings of the Group as at 1 February 2020:

Nature of
Place of business and Ownership Voting rights
Name of subsidiaryregistration Registered Address operation interest interest
Drome Limited England Sandbrook House, Sandbrook Park, Dormant 100% 100%
Rochdale, Lancashire, OL11 1RY *

Footasylum Brands England Sandbrook House, Sandbrook Park,  Non-trading 100% 100%
Limited Rochdale, Lancashire, OL11 1RY *

Projekts NYC England Sandbrook House, Sandbrook Park,  Dormant 100% 100%
Limited Rochdale, Lancashire, OL11 1RY *

Footasylum GmbH Germany Hohe Strafle 128-132, 50667 Koln, Non-trading 100% 100%

Germany

* The registered address was changed on 16 May 2019 to Edinburgh House, Hollins Brook Way, Bury, BL9 8RR.
During the period, Footasylum disposed of the shareholding in Loyalti Limited for a consideration of £1.

9 Intangible

Group & Company
1T
Development
Website Software Goodwill Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £°000
For the period ended 1 February 2020
Cost:
As at 23 February 2019 1,366 2,002 21 3,389
Additions 197 960 - 1,156
Disposals (13) - - (13)
As at 1 February 2020 1,550 2,962 21 4,533
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 23 February 2019 (752) (492) (21) (1,265)
Amortisation charge (270) (793) (1,063)
Disposals 4 - - 4
As at | February 2020 (1,018) (1,285) @n (2,324)
Net book value:
As at 1 February 2020 532 1,677 - 2,209
For the period ended 23 February 2019
Cost:
As at 24 February 2018 : 919 530 21 1,470
Additions 447 1472 - 1,919
As at 23 February 2019 1,366 2,002 21 3,389
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 24 February 2018 (534) (74) - (608)
Amortisation charge 217) (418) 21) (657)
As at 23 February 2019 (752) (492) (v2)) (1,265)
Net book value:
As at 23 February 2019 614 1,510 - 2,124
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10 Property, plant and equipment’

Group and Company
Fixtures
Motor and Computer  Plantand Assets Under
Vehicles Fittings Equipment Machinery Construction Total
£°000 £000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000
For the period ended 1 February 2020
Cost:
As at 23 February 2019 742 37,805 4,444 351 3,540 46,882
Adjustment for IFRS 16 (340) - (173) (346) - (859)
Additions 30 3,684 851 5 1,864 6,434
Disposals (82) (58) - - - (140)
_ Transfers - 3,601 32 - (3,633) -
As at 1 February 2020 . 350 45,032 5,154 10 1,771 52,317
Accumulated depreciation:
As at 23 February 2019 (528) (17,191) (2,287) (118) - (20,124)
Adjustment for IFRS 16 160 - 67 117 - 344
Depreciation charge 49) (3,793) (599) 2) - (4,443)
Impairment - (218) - - - (218)
Disposals 80 21 - - - 101
As at | February 2020 ~(337) (21,181) (2,819) (3) - (24,340)
Net book value:
As at | February 2020 . 13 23,851 2,335 7 1,771 27,977
Fixtures
Motor and Computer Plantand Assets Under
Vehicles Fittings Equipment Machinery Construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £7000 £000 £000
For the period ended 23 February 2019
Cost:
As at 24 February 2018 1,037 26,487 3,450 145 2,280 33,399
Additions 38 9,090 913 206 3,540 13,787
Disposals (303) - ) - - (304)
Transfers (30) 2,228 82 - _(2,280) -
As at 23 February 2019 742 37,805 4,444 351 3,540 46,882
Acc lated depreciati :
As at 24 February 2018 (553) (11,547) (1,720) : (58) - (13,878)
Depreciation charge (253) (4,644) (567} (60) - (5,524)
Impairment - (1,000) - - - (1,000)
Disposals 278 - - - - 278
As at 23 February 2019 (528) (17,191)  (2287) (118) - (20,123)
Net book value:
As at 23 February 2019 214 20,614 2,157 233 3,540 26,758

Right-of-use assets and assets held under finance lease are detailed in note 22.

During the year, management reassessed the useful economic life of assets as part of an impairment review and this resulted in an
additional depreciation charge of £218,000 (2019: £585,000).
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1 Inventory

Group Group Company Company
At1 At23 Atl At23
February February February February
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Inventory ) 36,908 37,002 36,908 37,002
Provision (2,982) (2,593) (2,982) (2,593)
33,926 34,409 33,926 34,409
Expenses recorded within cost of sales:
Group Group Company Company
49 Week 52 Week 49 Week 52 Week
Period ended Period ended Period ended Period ended
1 February 23 February 1 February 23 February
2020 2019 2020 2019
£7000 £000 £000 £°000
Inventory expense . - 141,468 132,396 141,468 132,396
Impairment (1,240) (338) (1,240) (338)
12 Trade and other receivables .
Group Group Company Company
At At23 At1l At23
February February February February
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Trade receivables 2,322 1,455 2,322 1,455
Corporation tax 778 74 778 74
Other debtors ) 5,326 4,603 5,300 4,603
Prepayments and accrued income 6,171 4,936 6,171 4,936
14,597 11,068 14,571 11,068
Expected credit losses at the period end are immaterial. Credit losses during the period are also immaterial.
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Group Company Company
Atl At23 Atl At23
February February February February
2020 2019 2020 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 3,448 5,301 3,448 5,301
3,448 5,301 3,448 5,301
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14 Trade and other payables ‘

Trade and other payables (current)

Group " Group Company Company

At At23 Atl - At23

February February February February

2020 2019 2020 2019

£7000 £000 £000 £000

Trade payables ) 15,391 14,992 15,391 14,992

- Revolving credit facility 2,000 - 2,000 -

Other taxation and social security . 7,788 5,435 7,788 5,435
Net obligation under finance lease and -

hire purchase - 136 229 136 229

Lease liabilities 14,352 - 14,352 -

Accruals and deferred income 11,142 11,475 11,149 11,600

50,809 32,130 50,816 32,255

Accruals and deferred income includes £83,000 of unamortised debt costs (2019: £86,000) and £nil of lease incentives (2019:
£783,000) which are spread over the lease term.

Trade and other payables (non-current)

Group Group Company Company
At 1 At23 At At23
February February February February
2020 2019 2020 2019
£°000 £°000 £000 £000

Net obligation under finance lease and '
hire purchase ’ 156 - .249 156 249
Lease liabilities ) 90,977 - 90,977 -
Accruals _ 35 16,369 35 6,251
) 91,168 6,617 91,168 6,500

Accruals include £35,000 of unamortised debt costs (2019: £118,000) and £nil of lease incentives (2019: 5,934,000) which are spread
over the lease term.

The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows:

Group Group Company Company

Atl At23 At At23

February February February February

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within | years 18,760 229 18,760 229
Between 2 and S years 68,285 249 68,285 249
After 5 years 38,819 - 38,819 -
125,864 478 125,864 478

Future finance charges on finance leases (20,244) (8 (20,244) (8)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 105,620 470 105,620 470
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15 Provision for Liabilities

As at 23 February 2019

Charge to profit and loss account
Utilised during the period
Released during the period
Adjustment for IFRS 16

As at 1 February 2020

Onerous

P VAT Lease (.)!her Total

rovision . Provisions
Provision

£000 £000 £000 £000

1,483 1,442 129 3,054

- - 767 767

(630) (328) - (958)

(853) - - (853)

- 106 106

- 1,220 896 2,116

Incfuded within the Other Provisons are amounts refating to the CMA investigation and acquisition by JD Sports Fashion plc of £767k

(2019: £nif)

Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due after one year
As at 1 February 2020

VAT Onerous Other

.. Lease . Total
Provision . Provisions

Provision

£°000 £000 £'000 £000

- 474 896 1,370

- 746 - 746

- 1,220 896 2,116
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16 Deferred taxation

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and Company in the period.

At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£000 £000
Deferred tax asset 603 231
603 231
At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£000 £°000
Reconciliation of deferred tax balances
Balance at beginning of period 231 104
Deferred tax credit 372 127
Balance at end of period 603 231
Deferred tax balances relate to the following:
At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£000 £7000
Tax losses carried forward - -
Other temporary differences : . 603 231
17 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£000 £000
Creditors falling due within less than one year
Net obligation under finance lease and hire purchase 136 229
Secured revolving credit facility - revolving credit facility (see note 14 & 18) 2,000 -
Lease liabilities 14,352 -
Creditors falling due after more than one year
Net obligation under finance lease and hire purchase 156 249
Lease liabilities 90,977 -
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 107,621 478

The revolving credit facility is secured against certain defined non-current assets held by the Group.
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18 Financial instruments
Fair values of financial instruments

Footasylum's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and cash
flow interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management framework

Risk management is carried out by the Footasylum finance department under policies approved by the Board. The Board has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board provides written principles
for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign currency risk

Footasylum sources an amount of purchases in US dollars and Euros and monitors its foreign currency requirements through short,
medium and long term cash forecasting. The Group enters into forward contracts to hedge key currencies in proportion to the calculated
' net exposure. ’

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows. This is based on the carrying amount of monetary financial instruments.

1 February 2020 US Dollar Euro Japanese Yen Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables 120 55 - 174
Balance sheet exposure 120 S5 - 174
23 February 2019 US Dollar Euro Japanese Yen Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables - 7 - 7
Balance sheet exposure - 7 - 7
Sensitivity Analysis

A 5% percent strengthening of the following currencies against pounds sterling at the balance sheet date would have decreased profit or
loss by the amounts shown below. This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
risk exposures existing at that date.

49 Week 52 Week
Period ended Period ended
1 February 23 February

2020 2019
£000 £000
US Doilar 6) -

Euro (3) (0)
Japanese Yen - .

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular other exchange rates and interest rates, remain constant.

A 5% percent weakening of the above currencies against pounds sterling in any period would have had the equal but opposite effect to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.
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18 Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. The Group has a revolving credit facility of £30,000,000 which expires
6 July 2021. As at 1 February 2020, £2,000,000 (2019: £nil) was drawn down and £28,000,000 was unused. The borrowings incur
interest at varying rates between 1.40% to 2.15% plus LIBOR which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The analysis of
loan repayments is detailed in note 19.

Proﬁle
At the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£000 £000
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets - -
Financial liabilities 2,000 -
Total financial liabilities 2,000 -

Revolving credit facilities

The Group has a revolving credit facility of £30,000,000 which expires 6 July 2021. The Group is in the final stages of agreeing an
extension of this facility to 6 July 2022, allowing access to £30,000,000 to 31.12.2021 and £17,500,000 thereafter. As at | February
2020, £2,000,000 (2019: £nil) was drawn down and £28,000,000 was unused. The borrowings incur interest at varying rates between 1
to 2.7% plus LIBOR which exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

A change of 0.5 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would have changed the value of equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This calculation assumes that the change occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to risk
exposures existing at that date.

This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant and considers the effect of financial
instruments with variable interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for comparative period.

49 Week 52 Week
Period ended Period ended
1 February 23 February

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Increase - -

Decrease - -
(b) Credit risk

Financial risk management

Credit risk arises from the possibility of customers and counterparties failing to meet their obligations to the Group. Investments of cash
surpluses, borrowings and derivative instruments are made through major banks, which must meet minimum credit ratings as required
by the Board.

All customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. Receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis and provision is made for impairment where amounts are not thought to be recoverable. At the reporting date there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk and receivables which are not believed to be recoverable.
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18 Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Exposure to credit risk .
The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk being the carrying amount of financial assets is summarised in the table within the fair

values section below.

(¢) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

Management prepares and monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s cash balances based on expected cash flows to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions without risking
damage to the Group’s reputation. Covenants are monitored on a regular basis to ensure there is no risk or breach which would lead to
an ‘Event of Default'.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

At At
1 February 23 February
2020 2019
£°000 . £000

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Trade and other payables

- within one year . 50,809 31,348
- between one and five years 91,168 683
141,977 32,031

Fair values of financial instruments

Trade and other payables and receivables
The fair value of these items are considered to be their carrying value as the impact of discounting future cash flows has been assessed

as not material.

Cash and cash equivalents
The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is estimated as its carrying amount where the cash is repayable on demand. Where it is not
repayable on demand then the fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest

at the balance sheet date.

Long-term and short-term borrowings
The fair value of bank loans and other loans approximates to its carrying value as it has an interest rate based on LIBOR.

Short-term deposits
The fair value of short term deposits is considered to be the carrying value as the balances are held in floating rate accounts where the

interest rate is reset to market rates.

Preference shares
The Directors believe that the fair value of preference shares approximates to its carrying value.
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18 Financial instruments (continued)

Fair values

The fair values of all financial assets and financial liabilities by class, together with their carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet,

are as follows:

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

Group

Group
carrying Group fair ‘carrying Group fair
value 1 value 1 value 23 value 23
February February February February
2020 2020 2019 2019
£000 £'000 £000 £000
3,448 3,448 5,301 5,301
14,597 14,597 11,068 11,068
(141,977) (141,977) (38,747) (38,747)
(123,932) (123,932) (22,378) (22,378)

Following a full review, the Directors believe that the fair value of the Group's financial instruments is not materially different to its

carrying value.

Within trade receivables, there are £1,888,000 of wholesale receivables which have been assessed for their potential future credit risk.
The Directors believe there is no material impact or risk relating to wholesale customers. At year end, the ageing of wholesale debtors
was as follows: Notdue: 23%; 1-31 days overdue: 7%; 32-62 days overdue: 57%; 63-92 days overdue: 6%, more than 92

days overdue: 7%.

Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables
Total financial liabilities

Company Company
carrying Company carrying  Company fair
value 1 fair value 1 value 23 value 23
February February February February
2020 2020 2019 2019
£000 £°000 £000 £7000
3,448 3,448 5,301 5,301
14,571 14,571 11,068 11,068
(141,984) (141,984) (38,755) (38,755)
(123,965) (123,965) (22,386) (22,386)
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19 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Lease
Liabilities Total
£'000 £'000
Group and Company
24 February 2018 415 415
Cash-flows:
- Repayments (188) (188)
- Proceeds , - -
- New finance leases 272 272
Non-cash:
- Acquisition (22) (22)
- Fair value - ~
- Reclassification - -
23 February 2019 477 477
23 February 2019 477 477
Adoption of IFRS 16 107,049 107,049
Revised 23 February 2019 107,526 107,526
Cash-flows:
- Repayment (16,481) (16,481)
- Proceeds - -
- New finance leases - -
Non-cash:
- Additions to right-of-use assets in exchange for
increased lease liabilities . 14,576 14,576
- Fair value - -
- Reclassification - -
1 February 2020 105,621 105,621

20 Share-based payments

At 24 February 2019, the Group had three share award plans, all of which are equity-settled schemes.

No new options were granted during the period and following the acquisition by JD Sports Fashion Plc, all LTIPs have subsequently
been cash-settled at 82.5 pence per share as at 12 April 2019 and the SAYE scheme has lapsed. Therefore the charge for the year is the

acceleration of all future charges as at this point. No share-based payments schemes are in place since 26 April 2019 and nothing in
place as at period end.

More information and details surrounding the terms of the schemes can be found in the prior years' financial statements.

.
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21 Share capital

Group & Company

Allotted and fully paid

104,474,390 'A’ ordinary shares of £0.001 each
4,238,961 'A’' ordinary shares of £0.001 each

At

1 February
2020

£000

104
S
109

At

23 February

2019
£000

104

104

On 12 April 2019, the Company issued 4,238,961 ordinary shares for a nominal value of £0.001 each to holders of awards under the
Footasylum Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) as part of the JD Sports acquisition proposal.

22 Leases

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position shows the following amounts relating to leases:

For the period ended 1 February 2020

Right-of-use assets”

Reclassification of previously held finance leases ‘

Ajdustment due to adoption of IFRS 16
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

As at 1 February 2020

Lease liabilities

" Brought forward

Ajdustment due to adoption of IFRS 16

Interest expense related to lease liabilities
Additions

Disposals

Payments on short team or low value lesases
Repayment of lease liabilities (including interest)
As at 1 February 2020

Current
Non-current

Land and Computer Plant and Motor
Buildings Equipment  Machinery Vehicles Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- 106 229 180 515
99,308 - - - 99,308
10,196 - - 48 10,244
(14,138) 1) (69) (116) (14,364)
95,366 65 160 111 95,703
- 36 255 186 477
107,049 - - - 107,049
4,390 1 10 10 4411
10,121 - - 44 10,165
734 - - - 734
(16,966) (37 (83) (129) (17,215)
105,328 - 183 111 105,621
14,488
91,133

) In the previous year, the Group only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classified as finance
leases under IAS 17 “Leases”. The assets were presented in property, plant and equipment and the liabilities as part of the Group’s

borrowings
23 Events after the reporting period

ID Sports Fashion plc

The Competition and Markets Authority (CMA') announced in its Final Report (FR’) on 6th May 2020 that they were prohibiting the
merger with JD Sports Fashion plc ('JD Sports') and that, consequently, they required JD Sports to fully divest its investment. A claim
for Judicial Review to the Competition Appeal Tribunal (‘Tribunal') was made by JD Sports and the Tribunal issued their judgement on
13th November 2020. The Tribunal quashed the decision of the CMA in it's FR in so far as its conclusions were based on the CMA’s
assessment of the likely effects of the COVID-19 pandemic (i) on the relevant markets, (ii) on the merging parties and/or the merged
entity, and (3ii) on the competitive constraints likely to apply to the merging parties and/or the merged entity where they did not have
the necessary evidence from which it could properly draw such conclusions. The divestment process is currently placed on hold while

further investigations are being conducted.

Page 46



DocuSign Envelope |1D: 04639787-05ED-4491-BF85-DIFA0D29C6F6

FOOTASYLUM LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements

23 Events after the reporting period (continued)

COVID-19

COVID-19 is a non-adjusting post balance sheet event and continues to have a global effect on all businesses. Governments around the
world have taken steps to mitigate the impact on their respective economies and this includes moving workers to work from home
where possible and shutting non-essential stores. These measures were brought in place post year end within the UK and various forms
of these continue to be in place as at the date of signing the financial statements. At this stage, the impact on the business has not been
significant and we will continue to follow the various government policies and advice. We will do our utmost to continue our
operations in the best and safest way possible without jeopardising the health of our people. We also refer to the Report of the Directors
reagrding the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

24 Key management compensation

The remuneration of the Directors, who are considered to be the only key management personnel of the Group, is disclosed in note 5 of
_ these financial statements. The Directors' remuneration was £3,712,000 (2019: £1,399,000).

25 Related party transactions

During the period the Group entered into commercial transactions with related parties as show in the tables below:
49 Week Period ended 1 February 2020

Description Purchases Balance owed Balance owed

of related Sales to from related by related to related

party related party party party party

£000 £000 £000 £000

2Squared Agency Limited a - 182 - -
Refuel Global Brands Limited a - 200 45 -
Creative Pedestrian Limited b - - 5 -
Above Surface Limited b - 30 - -
SW Trading Limited (T/A Big Brand Outlet) c 600 102 329 -
Peak Business Insight Limited d - 310 - -
BCB Retail Consultancy e - - - -
Loyalti Limited f 17 370 21 16
Focus Intemnational Limted g - 49 0 -
11 Sarto Milano Limited g - 36 - -
Mallet Footwear Limited g - - - -
Rascal Clothing Limtied g - 319 - 1
Topgrade Sportswear Limited g - - - -
UC Clothing Limited g 61 - 36 -
Airborne Footwear Limited h - 324 3 -
Berghaus Limited h - 823 - 4
Pentland Brands Limited h 52 771 30 27
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25 Related party transactions (continued)

52 Week Period ended 23 February 2019

Description Purchases Balance owed Balance owed

of related Sales to from related by related to related

party related party party party party

£000 £000 £000 £000

2Squared Agency Limited a - 69 3 -
Refuel Global Brands Limited a 4 1,192 - -
Creative Pedestrian Limited b - - 5 -
Above Surface Limited b - 120 - -
SW Trading Limited (T/A Big Brand Outlet) c 539 75 - 4
Peak Business Insight Limited d - 163 - -
BCB Retail Consultancy e - 34 - -
Loyalti Limited f - 334 670 348

The nature of the relationship and the transactions entered into with the related party are:

a) The company made purchases from 2Squared Agency Limited and Refuel Global Brands Limited, companies of which David
Makin's brother, Steve Makin, is a director.

b) The company made purchases from Creative Pedestrian Limited and Above Surface Limited, companies of which David
Makin's brother, Martin Makin, is a director.

¢) The company made sales and purchases from SW Trading Limited (T/A Big Brand Outlet), a company of which John
Wardle's Nephew, Stan Weekes, is a director.

d) The company made purchases from Peak Business Insight Limited, a company in which John Wardle, Clare Nesbitt, Tom
Makin and Amy Mason each have a 2.5% shareholding.

¢) The company made purchases from BCB Retail Consultancy, a company of which Barry Bown is a director.

f) The company made sales and purchases from Loyalti Limited, a company in which Footasylum had a 49% shareholding.

g) The company made sales and/or purchases from Focus International Limited, I Sarto Milano Limited, Mallet Footwear
Limited, Rascal Clothing Limited, Topgrade Sportswear Limited and UC Clothing Limited, subsidiaries of JD'Sports Fashion
plc, the immediate parent company.

h) The company made sales and/or purchases from Airborne Footwear Limited, Berghaus Limited and Pentland Brands Limited,
subsidiaries of Pentland Group Limited, the ultimate parent company.
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